
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA 
 

 
OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, 
 
   Petitioner 
 
  v. 
 
 
GORDON D. FISHER, 
 
   Respondent 

: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
 

No. 2760 Disciplinary Docket No. 3 
 
 
No. 161 DB 2020 
 
 
Attorney Registration No. 1207 
 
 
(Allegheny County) 
 
 
 

ORDER 

 

PER CURIAM 

AND NOW, this 17th day of February, 2023, upon consideration of the Verified 

Statement of Resignation, Gordon D. Fisher is disbarred on consent from the Bar of this 

Commonwealth, retroactive to November 13, 2020.  See Pa.R.D.E. 215.  Respondent 

shall comply with all of the provisions of Pa.R.D.E. 217 and pay costs to the Disciplinary 

Board pursuant to Pa.R.D.E. 208(g). 

Justice Wecht did not participate in the consideration or decision of this matter. 

 

A True Copy Nicole Traini
As Of 02/17/2023
  
  
   
Attest: ___________________
Chief Clerk
Supreme Court of Pennsylvania



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE 
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL,: No. 161 DB 2020 
Petitioner 

V. 

Atty. Reg. No. 1207 
GORDON D. FISHER, 

Respondent (Allegheny County) 

RESIGNATION 
UNDER Pa.R.D.E. §215 

Gordon D. Fisher hereby tenders his resignation from the practice of 

law in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in conformity with Pa.R.D.E. 

("Enforcement Rules") §215 and further states as follows: 

1. He is an attorney admitted in the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, having been admitted to the bar on or about March 22, 1971. 

His attorney registration number is 1207. 

2. He was placed on temporary suspension by Order of the 

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania dated November 13, 2020. 

3. He desires to submit his resignation as a member of said bar. 

4. His resignation is freely and voluntarily rendered, he is not being 

subjected to coercion or duress, and he is fully aware of the implications of 

submitting the within Resignation statement. 



5. He acknowledges that he has not consulted with or followed the 

advice of counsel in connection with his decision to execute the within 

Resignation statement. 

6. He is aware that there is presently pending a Petition for 

Discipline filed in the above-captioned matter, setting forth allegations that 

he has been guilty of misconduct as set forth in the Petition for Discipline, a 

true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A." 

7. He prepared and sent to the Prothonotary of the Disciplinary 

Board an Answer to Petition for Discipline and Request to Be Heard in 

Mitigation; however, the aforesaid Answer to Petition for Discipline and 

Request to Be Heard in Mitigation was received several days beyond the 

due date, and was therefore refused for filing by the Prothonotary. See 

Disciplinary Board Rules §89.3(b) and Enforcement Rules §208(b)(3). 

Thereafter, he filed a Motion to Permit Filing Nunc Pro Tunc of Answer 

to Petition for Discipline and Request to Be Heard in Mitigation, 

however that Motion was denied by an Order dated December 13, 

2022, specifically holding that all factual allegations in the Petition 

for Discipline are deemed admitted pursuant to Disciplinary Board 

Rules §89.54 (d). Accordingly, he acknowledges that the material 
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facts upon which the Petition for Discipline is predicated are 

deemed to be true. 

8. He submits the within Resignation statement because he knows 

that pursuant to the provisions of the Order dated December 13, 2022, and 

under Disciplinary Board Rules §89.3(b) and §89.54(d) and 

Enforcement Rules §208(b)(3), he could not successfully defend himself 

against the charges of professional misconduct set forth in the Petition for 

Discipline. 

9. He is fully aware that the submission of the within Resignation 

statement is irrevocable and that he can only apply for reinstatement to the 

practice of law pursuant to the provisions of Enforcement Rules §218(b) and 

(c). 

10. He is aware that, pursuant to Enforcement Rules §215(c), the 

fact that he has tendered his resignation shall become a matter of public 

record immediately upon delivery of the within Resignation statement to 

Disciplinary Counsel or the Board. 

11. Upon entry of the order disbarring him on consent, he will 

promptly comply with the notice, withdrawal, resignation, trust account, and 

cease-and-desist provisions of Enforcement Rules §217 (a), ( b), (c) and (d). 
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12. After entry of the order disbarring him on consent, he will file a 

verified statement of compliance as required by Enforcement Rules 

§217(e)(1). 

13. He is aware that the waiting period for eligibility to apply for 

reinstatement to the practice of law under Enforcement Rules §218(b) shall 

not begin until he files the verified statement of compliance required by 

Enforcement Rules §217(e)(1), and if the order of disbarment contains a 

provision that makes the disbarment retroactive to an earlier date, then the 

waiting period will be deemed to have begun on that earlier date. 

14. He requests that his disbarment be made retroactive to the date 

of his temporary suspension. He understands that the Office of Disciplinary 

Counsel does not oppose his request and that the decision whether to grant 

retroactivity is solely within the discretion of the Supreme Court of 

Pennsylvania. 

15. He understands and is advised by the Office of Disciplinary 

Counsel that the filing of the within Resignation statement terminates the 

hearing scheduled in the above-captioned matter for February 2, 2023, and 

terminates the temporary suspension proceedings filed at No. 2760 

Disciplinary Docket No. 3, File No. C4-19-503. 
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It is understood that the statements made herein are subject to the 

penalties of 18 Pa.C.S. §4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to 

authorities). 

Signed this  3\  day of• v r  , 2023. 

Gordon D. Fisher 

WITNESS:  •"'•. iL ••~`• 
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BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE 
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, 

Petitioner No. 161 DB 2020 
V. 

GORDON D. FISHER, Attorney Registration 
No. 1207 

Respondent (Allegheny County) 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE  

I, Gordon D. Fisher, Respondent, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resignation Under Pa.R.D.E. §215 complies with the 

provisions of the Public Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System 

of Pennsylvania, Case Records of the Appellate and Trial Courts that 

require filing confidential information and documents differently than 

non-confidential information and documents. 

Gordon D. Fisher, Respondent 

January 31, 2023 
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BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE 
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, 

Petitioner No. 161 DB 2020 
V. 

GORDON D. FISHER, Attorney Registration 
No. 1207 

Respondent (Allegheny County) 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  

I, Gordon D. Fisher, Respondent hereby certify that a true and 

correct copy of the foregoing Resignation Under Pa.R.D.E. §215 was 

emailed on January 31, 2023, to the attorney of record for the 

Petitioner addressed as follows: 

Daniel S. White, Esquire 
Office of Disciplinary Counsel 
Frick Building, Suite 1300 
437 Grant Street 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219 
Danny.White@pacourts.us 
dboard.d4@pacourts.us 

and to the Special Counsel, Disciplinary Board addressed as follows: 

Kimberly M. Henderson, Esquire 
The Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court 
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of Pennsylvania 
Pennsylvania Judicial Center 
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 5600 
P. 0. Box 62625 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17106-2625 
Kimberly. Henderson@pacourts. us 

and to the Board Prothonotary addressed as follows: 

Marcee D. Sloan, Board Prothonotary, 
The Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court 
of Pennsylvania 
Pennsylvania Judicial Center 
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 5600 
P. 0. Box 62625 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17106-2625 
PADBoardfilings@pacourts.us 
Marcee.Sloan@pacourts.us 

and to the Hearing Coordinator addressed as follows: 

Melanie L. Biting, Hearing Coordinator 
The Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court 
of Pennsylvania 
Pennsylvania Judicial Center 
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 5600 
P. 0. Box 62625 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17106-2625 
Melanie. Bitting@pacourts. us 

and to the Hearing Committee addressed as follows: 

Jason Louis Ott, Esquire 
Frost Brown Todd LLC 
501 Grant Street, Suite 800 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219 
jott@fbtlaw.com 
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Joseph Regis Froetschel, Esquire 
310 Grant Street 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219 
joe@baldwinmatzus.com 

Ryan D. Very, Esquire 
Very Law PLLC 
500 Grant Street, Suite 2900 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219 
rv@verylaw.com 

Gordon D. Fisher, Respondent 

January 31, 2023 
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EXHIBIT A 



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE 
SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, No. 161 D13 202G 
Petitioner 

V. Attorney Reg. No. 1207 

GORDON S D. FISHER, 
Respondent • Ilegheny County) 

PETITION FOR DISCIPLINE 

Petitioner, -the Office -of Disciplinary Counsel (hereinafter " D °), by 

Thomas J. Farrell, Chief Disciplinary Counsel, and Daniel S. White, 

Disciplinary Counsel, files the within .Petition for Discipline and charges 

Respondent, Gordon D. Fisher, with professional misconduct in violation of 

the Rules, of Professional Conduct and the Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement 

as follows: 

1 _ Petitioner, whose principal office is situated at Pennsylvania 

Judicial Center, 801 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 2700, P.O. Box 62485, 

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17108 is invested. pursuant to Rule 207 of the 

Pennsylvania Rules of Disciplinary Enforeernent (hereinafter "Pa. . D.E."), 

with the power and duty to investigate all rnaUers involving alleged misconduct 

of any attorney admitted to practice law in the Commonwearith of Pennsylvania 
FILED 

09/14/2022 

The Disciplinary Board of the 

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania 



and to prosecute all disciplinary ,proceedings brought in accordance with the 

various provisions of sail Rules-

2. Respondent, Gordon, D. Fisher, was born in 1945, was admitted to 

practice law in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on March 22, 1971, and 

has a registered mailing address cf 2901 Shady Avenue, Pittsburgh, 

Pennsylvania 15217, 

. Respondent is subject to the disciplinary jurisdiction of the 

Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania. 

CHARGE 

Estate of Cara9ine R. Bray-'ley  

4. On February 29, 2016, Caroline R. Brayley died testate leaving 

assets in excess of one million fire hundreds thousand dollar ($ 1,500,000.00). 

5_ The Last Will and Testament of Caroline R. Brayley bequeathed 

twenty-six percent ( 6%) of the residue of her estate to chartable 

organizations. 

. The Last Will and Testament of Caroline R. Brayley appointed 

Richard Allison as executor. 

7. In or about March of 2016, Mr. Allison engaged Respondent to 

represent him in connection with the .administration of the Estate of Caroline 

R. Brayley. 
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8. In or about March of 2016, Mr. Allison opened an account at Cellar 

Bank entitled " arcline R. Brayley Estate, Estate-Dec, Richard L Allison, 

Exec," account number ending in 0926. (hereinafter the " Brayley Estate 

Account"). 

9. Respondent was not an authorized sicgnatory on the Brad.1ey Estate 

Account. 

10. Periodic statements regarding the Brayley Estate Account were 

sent &ectly to Respondent. 

11. Periodicstatements regarding the Brayley Estate Account were 

not sent to Mr_ Allison. 

12, By check. number 9 , drawn against the Brayley Estate Account on 

'larch 2r 2016, Mr. Allison paid Respondent, five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) 

for "Retainer for Estate." 

13, On March 2, 2016, Respondent deposited this check into an 

account Respondent maintains at Collar Bank entitled "Gordon D. Fisher or 

Wesley B.Scott," account .number ending in 0224 (hereinafter "Respondent's 

Personal .Account° ). 

14. Respondent's Personal Account is not .a Trust Account or ILTi A_ 
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1 . By check number 824, drawn against the Brayley Estate Account 

on April 1, 2016, her. Allison paid Respondent two thousand and five hundred 

dollars ($2,500.00)  for uAttorney Fees." 

16. On April 1, 2016, Respondent deposited this check into 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

17_ By letter to Mr. Allison dated April 8, 2618, Respondent indicated 

that, inter alia, he would charge for this representation "on an hourly rate of' 

$350.06 per hour." 

18_ On April, 13, 2016, Mr_ Allison signed this letter_ 

19. By check number 562, drawn .against the Brayley Estate Account 

on ,June 3, 2016, Mr. }Alison paid Despondent five thousand dollars 

($5,600.60) for " Retainer." r." 

0. On June 13, 2618, Respondent deposited this check into 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

1 n August 18, 2616, Respondent transferred three thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($3,506.00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Fl rsonel Account. 

22- By check number 638, drawn against the Brayley Estate Account 

an November 4, 2616, Mr. Allison paid Respondent five thousand dollars 

(65,000.00) for "tees." 



23- On November 4, 2016, Respondent deposited this check into 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

4. By check number 52950 dated November 4, 2016, Elite Closings, 

LL C, paid Respondent two thousand seven hundred and sixty-five dollars 

($2,766.00) for °Seller Attorney Fee," which was generated from the sale of 

real estate belonging to the Estate of Caroline R. Brayley. 

25. On November 4, 2.016, Respondent deposited this check into 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

26. On November 10, 2016, Respondent transferred fire thousand 

dollars ($5,040.000 from the Brayley Estate ,Account to Respondent's Personal 

Account. 

27. On December S, 20]16, Respondent transferred six thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($6,600.00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

26. On December 16, 2016, Respondent transferred three thousand 

and five hundred dollars (3,600 .00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

. On January 27, 2017, Respondent transferred sic thousand and 

fire hundred dollars ($6,500-00)  from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal }account. 
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30_ On February 10, 2017,. Respondent transferred five thousand and 

two hundred dollars ($5,200.00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

31- On March 13, 2017, Respondent transferred four thousand seven 

hundredi and fifty dol1'ars ($4,750.00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

32, On April 11, 2017, Respondent transferred five thousand seven 

hundred and seventy-five dollars ($5,775.00) from the Bra ley Estate Account 

to Respondent's Personal Account. 

3, On May 12, 20117, Respondent transferred fire thousand one 

hundred and twenty-five dollars ($5,125.00) from the Brayley Estate Account 

to Respondent's Personal Account. 

3-4 On June 7, 2017, Respondent transferred Eve thousand three 

hundred thirty-seven dollars and fife cents ($5,337.50) from the Brayley 

Estate Account to Respondent's Personal Account. 

3, On July 1, 2017, Respondent transferred four thousand eight 

hundred and thirty dollar. ($4,830.00) from. the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 
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36. On July 18, 2017, Respondent transferred four thousand eight 

hundred and thirty dollars ($4,830.00) from the Brayley Estate Account to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

7_ On August 8, 2017, Respondent transferred six thousand three 

hundred eighty-seven dollars and fifty cents ($6,387.50) from the Brayley 

Estate Account to, Respondent's Personal Account. 

8_ On August 25, 2017, Respondent transferred three thousand six 

'hundred and seventy-five dollars ($3,675.00) from the 6 ray ley Estate Aocourd 

to Respondent`s Personat Account. 

8. On September 7, 2017, Respondent transferred six thousand two 

hundred twelve dollars and fifty cants ($8,212.50) from the Brayley Estate 

Account to Respondent's Personal Account. 

0, Mr, Allison did not authorize the transactions set forth in 

paragraphs 2.1 and 26-39 supra. 

41. 'Respondent did not. execute the transactions set forth in 

paragraphs 21. and 26-39 supra for the benefit of the Estate of Caroline R. 

Brayley or the beneficiaries thereof. 

4 _ Respondent executed the transactions set forth in paragraphs 21 

and 26-39 supra for his own personal benefit. 



4. The sums of the transactions set forth, in paragraphs 21 and 6-9 

supra is seventy-seven thousand cne hundred twenty-two dollars and fifty 

cents ($77,122.50). 

44. Collar Bank has reimbursed the Estate of Caroline R. Brayley for 

the unauthorized t7ansactions set forth in paragraphs 2'1 and 26-39  upra. 

45. By check number 660, drawn against the Brayley Estate Account 

on May 15, 2018, Mr. Allison paid Respondent twenty-one thousand seven 

hundred and fifty doIPars ($ 2 1,750.00) for "F etainer on Estate." 

46. On May 15, 2018, Despondent deposited this check into 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

47. In October of 2019, Mr. Allison terminated) Respondents 

representation. 

48. By Subpoena Duces Tecum dated August 6, 2020, which was 

issued by OD C, Despondent was commanded to, inter alga: 

For the time period beginning March, 1, 2016, through and 
including to the present date, provide any and all 
trustlfid uciary account ledger(s) or other documents (either 
in hard copy farm or electronic) maintained by you relating 
to the Estate of Caroline Brayley, including but not limited to 
individual client. ledgers,documents evidencing monthly 
reconciliations of individual client trust ledger(s) to monthly 
balances of fiduciary account(s) which account for any 
funds entrusted to you on behalf of the Estate of Caroline 
Brayley and disbursements made therefrom. 
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9. By letter to ODG dated August 18, 2020, Respondent provided a 

"Response to Subpoena Duces Tecum." 

50. Respondent represented therein that "[n]o trust/fiduciary accounts 

were maintained by me in connection with the (Estate of Caroline Brayley.° 

51. Respondent failed to produce any of the periodic statements 

regarding the Bra ley Estate Account that were sent directly to hire. 

2. Respondent provided no meaningful services in exchange for the 

payments set forth in paragraphs 12-13, 15-1 6,19-23, 26-39 and 45A-6 supra. 

. On October 14, 2020, ODC fled with the Supreme Court of 

Pennsyr vania a Petition for Emergency Temporary Suspension Order and 

Related Relief Pursuant to Rule 08(f)('l), Pa.R.D.E., seeking, rater alfa, 

Respondent's immediate suspension for violations of RPC 1,15(b), F P 

1.15(1), RPC 8.4(b) and RPC 8.4(c) in connection with the Estate of Caroline 

R. Brayle_ 

54. By Order and Rule to Shove Cause dated October 26, 2020, the 

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, inter afla, directed Despondent "to prepare 

and deliver within ten days of the date of this order a list of the names and 

addresses of all clients and other entities he is currenfly representing: in which 

he is a fiduciary, showing the dates, amounts and circumstances cf the 
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entrustment and current balance thereof, as well as the banks and account 

numbers in which such funds are currently maintained." 

55, Respondent failed to provide such Information to 013C. . 

55, On November 4, 2020, the Office of the Attorney General filed a 

Petition for Citation to Show Cause Why Attomey Gordon D. Fisher Should 

Not Reimburse His ,Attorney Fees to the Estate and,,' ay Statutory Interest and 

Punitive Damages, seeping, rater alia, Respondent's return of the forty-two 

thousand and fifteen dollars ($42,015.00) set forth in paragraphs 1-1, 15-

16, 19-20,  2-25 and 45A6 supra-

57. Respondent entered into a confidential settlement resolving this 

Petition. 

5B; Respondent has otherwise failed to return any portion of the one 

hundred nineteen thousand one hundred this-seven dollars and fifty cents 

($119,137-50)  that he misappropriated from the Estate of Caroline R. Brayley, 

as set forth in paragraphs 12-13,  15-16, 19-39 and 45-46 :supra. 

59. By Order dated November 13, 2020, the Supreme Court of 

Pennsylvania, rater alia, placed Respondent on temporary suspension and 

directed hire to "comply -with the provisions of Pa. I . D. E. 17" (hereinafter the 

"Suspension Orders"). 
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60, By letter to Respondent dated November 13, 2020, the Board 

Prothonotary, inter alia, enclosed copies of the Suspension Order and Rule 

1. 7, Pa.I . D.E. 

1. Respondent received this letter. 

62. On November 17, 2020, F espondentfiled a Petition for Dissclub'on 

or Amendment of Order for Temporary Suspension, challenging service of 

both the Petition for Emergency Temporary Suspension and Related Relief 

Pursuant to Rule 208(f)(1), Pa. R.D.E., and the October 26, 2020 Order and 

Rule to Show Cause_ 

3. On December 2, 2020, a hearing was conducted regarding this 

Petition before a designated member of the Disciplinary Board. 

4. By Order dated) December 23, 2020, the Supreme Court of 

Pennsylvania denied this Petition. 

5. Respondent failed to file a verified statement with the Disciplinary 

Board averring that he has fully complied with the provlsions of the 

Suspension Order. 

. By letter to Respondent dated December 23, 2020; the Board 

Prothonotary advised that, inter alga, 'you have not complied with a specific 

requirement of the November 13, 2020 Order entered by the Supreme Court. 

We have not received the verified statement required by Rule 217, Pa.R.D.E.® 
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7. Respondent received this letter. 

8, Respondent did not thereafter file a verified statement with the 

Disciplinary Board averring that he has fully compiled with the provisions of 

the Suspension Carder. 

69. Respondent failed to notify any clients of his temporary 

suspension and his consequent inability to act as an attorney after the 

effective date thereof. 

70. The 2029-2021 PA Attorney's ,Annual Fee Form that Despondent 

submitted to the Attorney Registration Office on July 1, 2020, indicated that he 

was admitted and on active status in the following jurisdictions: 

(a) the United States District Court for the Western District of 

Pennsylvania; 

(h) the United Mates Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit; 

(c) the Supreme Court of the United States; and 

(d) the United Mates. Tax Courts 

71. Respondent failed to notify the United States District Court for the 

Western District of Pennsylvanian of his temporary suspension. 

72. Respondent failed to notify the United States Court of Appeals for 

the Thirds Circuit of his temporary suspension. 



7 . .Despondent failed to notify the Supreme Court of the United. 

States of his temporary suspension_ 

74. Respondent failed to notify the United Mates Tax {Court of his 

temporary suspension. 

Estate of Ann Power Wardrop  

75- Can May 2, 2012, Ann Power Wardrop executed a Trust Agreement 

creating the Ann Parer Wardrop Trust for the benefit of her three ( ) 

daughters, in which she named Despondent and Ralph Roe as Trustees. 

76. This Trust Agreement provided for "annual compensation'` to 

Respondent as Trustee " in accordance w 1ith the schedule of PNC Bank in 

Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania in effect. when the services are 

performed, but not in excess of such -compensation as would be approved by 

a court of ,competent jurisdiction." 

77, A December 2,013 auction of Ms. ardro,p's personal property 

resulted in net proceeds for the Ann Power Wardrop Trust. in the amount of 

thirty-five thousand four hundred fifty-three dollars and forty-six cents 

($35,453.46). 

78. In December of 2013, the Ann Power Wardrop Trust received 

twelve thousand nine hundred fifty-eight dollars and sixty-five cents 
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($12,958.65) from the sale of stock in H.J. Heinz Company, which had been, 

purchased by 3G Capital and Berkshire Hathaway. 

79. In addition to the funds set forth in paragraphs 77-78 supra, 

Respondent was entrusted with an additional six thousand seven hundred' 

ninety-two dollars .and forty-four cents ($6,792.44) on behalf of the Ann Power 

Wardrop Trust representing, inter.alfa, stock dividends. 

.80.. As setforth in paragraphs 77-79 supra, Respondentwas entrusted 

with fifty-five thousand two hundred four dollars and fifty-five  cents 

($55,204.55) on behalf of the Ann Power Wardrop Trust (hereinafter the 

"Wardrop Entrusted Funds"). 

81. Despondent maintained the Wardrop Entrusted Funds in an 

account at Dollar Bank entitled "The An n Power Wardrop Trust, Trust, Gordcn 

D. Fisher, Trustee, Ralph Roe, Trustee, UTA Dated May 2, 2012," account 

number ending in 6767 (hereinafter the "Wardrop Account"). 

82, By check number 504 dated July 1, 2015., Respondent distributed 

two thousand and five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrap Entrusted 

Funds to himself. 

88. By checks number .505 dated ,duly 21, .2015, Respondent distributed 

three (hundred three dollars and thirty cents ($803.30) of the Wardrop 

Entrusted Funds to himself. 
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Rd . On ,August °17, 2015, Respondent transferred two thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to. 

Respondent's 'Personal Account. 

$b. By check number 507 dated October 14, 2015, Despondent 

distributed two thousand and five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrop 

Entrusted Funds to himself. 

86. On ctober.21, 2015, Respondent transferred two thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrop. Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

7. On November 8., 2015, Respondent transferred two thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

88. On November 18, 20157 Respondent transferred three thousand 

dollars. ($3,000.00) of the ' ardrop Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account.. 

W On November, 18, 2015, Respondent transferred one thousand 

dollars ($1,000,00) of tyre Wardrop Ent rustedi Fundsto Respondent's Personal 

Account. 
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0. On November 20, 2015, Respondent transferred one thousand 

and five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

91. €fin November 23, 2015, Respondent withdrew one thousand .and 

five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds and 

deposited such funds into an account Respondent maintains at Dollar Bank 

entitled "Gordon D. Fisher orWesley B. Scott," account number ending in 

0173 (hereinafter the "Fisher/Scott Account'). 

92. The Fisher/Scott Account is not a Trust Account or ILOLTA. 

93. On 'February 1, 2010, Respondent transferred two thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

94. On February 11, 2016, Respondent transferred two thousand 

dollars ($2,.000, 00) of the'Wardrop Entrusted Funds to Respond'ent's Personal 

Account. 

90_ On February 29, 2010, Respondent transferred one thousand; and 

fire hundred dollars ($1,500,00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

16 



. On July 5, 2016, Respondent transferred four thousand and fire 

hundred dollars ($4,500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to the 

Fisher/Scott Account. 

7. On July 12, 2016, Respondent transferred two thousand and five 

hundred dollars ($2,500-00) of the Wardrop Entrusted (Funds to Respondent's 

Personal ,Account. 

g3_ 0 n August 11, 201 , R espondent transferred tiro thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($2,501.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

99. On August 31, 2016, Respondent transferred two thousand dollars 

($2,000.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account. 

100. On September 20,2016, Respondent transferred one thousand 

seven hundred and fifty dollars ($1,750.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

101. On November 23, 2016, Ms. Wardrop died testate. 

102. The Will of Ann Power Wardrop appointed Respondent and Mr. 

Roo as executors of Ids_ ardrop's estate.-

103. The Will of Ann Power Wardrop bequeathed Ms, ardrop's 

"Residuary Estate" to the Ann Poorer Wradrop Trust_ 
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104. By check number 510 dated February 8, 2017, Respondent 

distributed six hundred dollars ($600.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to 

'himself. 

105. On May 23, 2017, Respondent and Mr, Roe were granted letters 

testamentary for the Estate. of Ann Power Wardrop. 

1106_ On April 6, 2018, Respondent transferred three thousand sic 

hundred and fifty dollars ($3,650.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted. Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account.. 

107. On May 11, 2018, Respondent transferred five hundred dollars 

($500.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to Respondenfs'PersonaI Account. 

103. On June 13, 2018, Respondent withdrew two thousand dollars 

($2,000.4) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds_ 

109. On July 2, 2018, Respondent transferred two thousand d'oll'ars 

($2,000.04) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account, 

110. On July 1.0, 2018, Respondent transferred one thousand dollars 

($1,0010.00) of the Wardrop Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account. 
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111. Respondent did not execute the transactions set forth in 

paragraphs 82-91. 3-100, 104 and 106-110 supra for the benefit. of the Ann 

Power Wardrop Trust or the beneficiaries thereof. 

112.. Respondent did not execrate the transactions set forth in 

paragraphs 82-91, 93-100, 104 and 106-110 supra for the benefit of the 

Estate of Ann Power Ward rop or the Beneficiaries thereof. 

1:13. Despondent executed the transactions set forth in paragraphs 827 

911, 93-1 OO 104 and 1-06-110 supra for his own personal benefit. 

114. The sum of the transactions set forth in paragraphs 82-91,  3-100„ 

104 and 106-110 supra is forty-eight thousand eight hundred three dollars and 

thFrty cents ($48,8{3.30). 

115. Respondent provided no meaningful services in exchange for the 

payments set forth in paragraphs 82-91, 9-100, 1-04 and 106-110 supra. 

116. Respondent has failed to return, any portion of the ford-eight 

thousand eight hundred three dollars and thirty cents ($48,803.80) that he 

misappropriated frern the Ann Power 1 ardrop Trust or the Estate of Ann 

Power Wardrop. 
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Estate of Thomas A. Smith 

11.7. At all time relevant. hereto Respondent maintained an I LTA at 

Dollar Bank entitled "PA Interest on Lawyers Trust Account, Gordon Fisher," 

account number ending in 7995 (hereinafter the "I LTN'). 

118. Respondent is the sole authorized signatory on the IOLTA. 

119. On .January 15, 20'19, Thomas Smith died testate. 

120. The Will of Thomas A. Smith appointed Respondent as executor of 

Mr, Smith's estate. 

121. The Wf!: ofThornas A. Smith bequeathed Mr. Smith's "Residuary 

Estate" to The Congregation of the Servants of Christ-St. Augustine's House 

and to the Thomas A. Smith Scholarship Fund in the Department of Dairy and 

Animal Science in the College of Agricultural Sciences at The Pennsylvania 

State University. 

122. OnJanuary 31, 2019; Respondent was granted letters 

testamentary for the Estate of Thomas A. Smith. 

1.23. By Official Check number 2244648 dated February 1, 2019, First 

Commonwealth 'Bark paid Thomas A. Smith four thousand nine hundred 

seventy-two dollars and seventy-sic cuts ($4,972.76). 

124. On February 5, 2019, Respondent deposited this check into the 

ILTA. 
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125. By Official Check number 028427186 dated February 5, 201'9, 

I eyBank paid *Gordon D. Fisher Extr., Estate of Thomas A. Smith,* fifty 

thousand dollars ($50,000.00). 

120. On February , 20119, Respondent deposited this check into the 

I O LTA. 

127. On or (before February 7, 2019, Respondent received fire hundred. 

sixty-one dollars and ninety-eight cents ($561,98) in cash on behalf of the 

Estate of Thomas as . Smith. 

128. On February 7,2019', Respondent deposited these funds into the 

IOLTA, 

129. By check number 657993 dated lurch 5, .2019, Publishers 

Clearing House paid Mr.Smith twenty-four dollars and ninety-eight cents 

($24.98). 

130. On March 20, 2019, Despondent deposited this check into the 

1 O LTA 

131, By Official Check number 026427244 dated May 9, 2019, 

1 e Bank paid "Gordon D_ Fisher, Exec for the Estate of Thomas A. Smith," 

sixty-eight thousand eight hundred fourteen dollars andseventy-nine cents 

($68,614.79). 

132. On May 9, 2019, Respondent deposited this check into the IOLT . 
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133. By Official Check number 400418824 dated May 16, 2019, 

KeyBank paid Thomas A. Smith seventy-six cents ($036). 

1.34. On May .2 r 2019, Respondent deposited this check into the 

ILTA. 

135. By check number 511814 dated February 26, 2020, the FTC v. 

Office Depot Refund Administrator paid Thomas Smith fifty-four dollars and 

ten cents ($544.10D) 

138. By -check number 001438753 dated iMarch 5, 2020, Portico Benefit 

Services paid the Estate of Thomas. A. Smith six thousand dollars ($6,000.00)_ 

137. On March 10, 2020, Respondent deposited, the checks set forth in 

paragraphs 135-136 supra into the IOLTA. 

138. By chuck number K174245 dated March 9, 2020, Thrivent 

Financial paid the Thomas A. Smith Estate fourteen thousand fifty-eight 

dollars and sixty-nine cents ($14,058.619). 

139. On (March 12, 2020, Respondent deposited this check into the 

I LTA. 

140. By check number 6160012734 dated October 1, 2010, Citibank, 

N.A. paid Thomas A. Smith eleven dollars and fifty-seven cents ($11.57). 

1411 n April 13, 2020, Respondent deposited this check into the 

I LTA. 
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142. By check number 137640 dated April 1 , 020, Victory Funds paid 

Thomas A. Smith two thousand four hundred thirty-three dollars and fifty-six 

cents ($2,433.56)-

143. On April 24, 2020, Respondent deposited this check into the 

I O LTX 

144. By check number 1,54212 dated June 2, 2020, the Sirius XM 

DNC Settlement Administrator paid Thomas Smith thirty-eight dollars and 

forty-five cents ($38.45). 

145. On July 23, 2020, Respondent deposited this check into the 

ILTA, 

146. As set forth in paragraphs 123-145 supra, between February of 

20119 and July of 2020, Respondent was entrusted with one hued red forty-six 

thousand nine hundred seventy-one dollars and sixty-four cents ($146,9-71,64) 

on behalf of the Estate of Thomas A. Smith (hereinafter the "Smith Entrusted 

Funds"). 

147. On, February -9, 2019, Respondent transferred fire thousand 

dollars ($5,000.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account. 
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148. On February 19, 2019, Respondent transferred five thousand 

dollars ($5,000.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to, Respondent's Personal 

Account. 

149. On March 8, 2019, Respondent transferred ten thousand dollars 

($10,000.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal 

Account. 

150. On March 12, 2019, Respondent transferred eight thousand one 

hundred five dollars and thirty-ore cents ($8,105.31) of the Smith Entrusted 

Funds to Respond'ent's Personal Account. 

151. On April 10, 2019, Respondent transferredeight thousand eight 

hundred and seventy-five dollars ,($8,875.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

152, On May 1, 2019, Respondent, sic thousand six hundred 

and twenty4ve dollars ($6,625.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal.Account. 

15 3. 0 n May 13, 2019, F e pondent transferred seven thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($7,500.00) cf the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 
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154. On May 29, 2019, Respondent transferred eleven thousand three 

hundred and seventy-fire dollars ( 11,375.00) of the Smith, Entrusted Funds 

to Respondent's Personal Account. 

155. On June 11, 2019, Respondent transferred eight thousand seven 

hundred and sixty-five dollars ($8,765.x]0) of the Smith, Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal. Account. 

156, On June 24, 2019, Respondent transferred five thousand four 

hundred and twenty-five dolfars ($5,425.00) of the Srnith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

157. On July 3, 20"19, Respondent transferred seven thousand two 

hundred and fifty dollars ($7;250.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

158. On July 11,:2019, Despondent transferred sever, thousand and 

five hundred dollars ($7,500.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal ,Account. 

159. On July 22, 2019, Respondent transferred three thousand seven 

hundred and fifty dollars ($3,750.00) of the Smithy Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 
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1 0. On August 13, 2019, Respondent transferred eight thousand five 

hundred and .seventy-f G e dollars ($8,575.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respond'ent's Personal Account. 

161. On August 29, 2019, Respondent transferred one thousand six 

hundred and ten dollars ($1,610.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

162. Can March 11, 2020, Respondent transferred give thousand dollars 

($5,000.00) of the math Entrusted Funds to Respondent's Personal Account. 

163. On March 1 , 20.20, Respondent transferred five thousand dollars 

($5,1000.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds to Respondents, Personal Account. 

164. On April 6, 2020, Respondent transferred four thousand seven 

hundred sixty-four dollars and eight-sic cents ($4,764.85) of the Smith 

Entrusted Funds, to Respondent's Personal Account_ 

155. On June 5, 2020, Respondent transferred six thousand eight 

h  €mired and seventy-fi re dollars ($6,875.00) of the Smith Entrusted Funds. to 

Respondent's Personal Account. 

166. Respondent did not execute the transactions set forth in 

paragraphs 147-165 supra for the benefit of the Estate of Thomas A. Smith or 

the beneficiaries thereof. 
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167. Respondent executed the transactions set forth in paragraphs 

147-165 supra for his own personal benefit. 

168. The surn of the transactions set forth in paragraphs 147-165 supra 

is. one hundred twenty-six thousand nine hundred ninety-five dollars and 

seventeen cents ($ 126,995.17). 

169, Despondent provided no meaningful services in exchange for the 

payments set forth in paragraphs 14.7-166 supra. 

170. Respondent. has failed tol return any portion of the one hundred 

twenty-six thousand nine hundred ninety-five dollars and seventeen cents 

($126,995.17) that he misappropriated from the Estate of Thomas A. Smith. 

171. FoClowing the issuance of the Suspension Order, Despondent 

failed to resign his appointment as Personal Representabve of the Estate of 

Thomas A. Smith. 

172, On April 8, 20 1, Respondent filed, in his capacity as Personal 

Representative of the Estate of Thomas rA. Smith, a States Report Under Rule 

10.6 with the Register of Wills of Allegheny County, reporting that; inter afia, 

Respondent acid not reasonably believe that his administration of-the Estate of 

Thomas A. Smith would be complete until ,April 5, 2022. 

173. On February 9, 2022, Respondent appeared before the Honorable 

Joseph K. WiIIiams, IIl, in the utter of In rte. Estate of Thom as A. Sm ith a/ /a 
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Thomas Avery Smith, Deceased, docket number 0689 of 2019 (Court of 

Common Plus of Allegheny County, Orphans" Court Division), at which time 

Respondent had the following exchange with Judge Williams: 

THE COURT: Will Counsel identify themselves for the 
irecord? 

MR. FISHER: I'm Gordon Fisher, the Executor of the estate. 

MR. JOHNS: Your Honor, there is one thing I'd like to bring 
to the Court's attention. It's the Supreme Court of 
Pennsylvania, when, they placed Gordon D_ Fisher on 
suspension, as part of their order -- the fourth part of their 
order, where all financial institutions which are — fiduciary 
funds shall —, 

COURT REPORTER::  I'm sorry, Slowdown. 

THE COURT: Yes, slow down and take your mask off. We 
can't hear you. 

MR. JOHNS: I apologize, As part of the order, the fourth 
part cf the order states specifically, all financial institutions 
in which Respondent, Gordon D. Fisher, holds fiduciary 
funds shall freeze such accounts pending further action. 

THE COURT: Right, So ghat do you — how do you plan to 
deal withthat issue's 

MR.,. FISHER; Your Manor, I am -- there's no restriction on 
me continuing to serge as an executor. And -those are not 
deemed to be part of those funds. 

THE COURT: What do you think Y-

MR. FISHER: My I LTA account is frozen. 
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THE COURT; What do }you think of that? 

MR. JOHNS:  Your Honor, this is a fiduciary position, r 

would argue, .and we would argue that the order extends to 
any fiduciary role Gordon D. Fisher assumes especially in 
light of the reasons for this order. 

THE COURT., Right. I believe that an executor is a 
fiduciary. I believe they're acting on the behalf of, if nothing 
else, the estate. They're a fiduciary of the estate. 

What do you think? 

MR. FISHER: The .rules cleari+y provide that I am to continue 
to act as are executor and do .all that is required as are 
executor. 

174. Respondent's representations that "there's no restriction on me 

continuing to serve as an executor" and "[tlhe males clearly provide that ! am to 

continue to act as are executor and do all that is required as an executor" are 

false. Rule 17(d)( )(i)(ii)., Pa. D.E. 

175. Respondent's implication that he maintained the Smith Entrusted 

Funds in a separate Trust .Account or Ikon-1 LTA account is false. 

176. By Order dated March 10, 2022, Respondent was removed as 

executor of the Estate of Thomas A. Smith. 

177, By letter to I esPondent dated February 10, 2022, ODC requested 

Respondent's Statement of Position regarding allegations that he, interadia, 

misappropriated one hundred twenty-six. thousand nine ,hundred ninety-five 
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doltars and seventeen cents ($ 126,005.17) from the Estate of Thomas A. 

Smith and failed to resign as executor of the Estate of Thomas A. Smith 

following the issuance of the Suspension Order. 

176. By letter to ODC dated April 1 , . 022, Respondent represented 

that wthe information provided to me by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania in 

connection with its Order dated November 11. 2020, ind[cated that lawyers 

place! -an temporary suspension could continue to serve in a fiduciary 

capacity such as executor." 

179. This representation is false. 

Criminal Proceedings  

180. On February 8, 2022, Respondent was arrested and charged with, 

inter aiia, three ( ) courts of them by failure to make required disposition of 

funds received in violation of 18 P& . . § 3927, felonies of the third degree, 

in connection with the Estate of Caroline R. B ray Iey, the Aran Power Wardrop 

Trust and the Estate of Thomas A. Smith. 

181. This matter is currently pending in Magisterial District Court 05-0-

03 (Allegheny County) .at docket number M J -0 5003-C R-0006 947-2021 . 

1,8 2. By his conduct as alleged In Paragraphs 4 through 181 above, 

Respondent violated the fo11owing Rules of Professional Conduct and R ules of 

Disciplinary Enforcement-, 
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(a) RPC 1.1, which provides that "[a] lawyer shall provide 

competent representation to a client. Competent 

representation requires the legal knowledge, shill, 

thoroughness and preparation reasonably necessary for the 

representation", 

(b) RPC 1. 3, which provides that "[a] lawyer shall act with 

reasonable diligence and promptness in representing a 

client'°, 

(c) RPC 1,5(a), which provides, in pertinent part, that °'[a] 

lawyer shall not enter into an agreement for, charge, or 

collect an illegal or eleady excessive fee„; 

(d) RP 1_15(b), which provides that "[a] lawyer shall hold all 

.Rule 1.15 Funds and property separate from the lawyer's 

own property_ Such property shall be identified and 

appropriately safeguarded)"; 

(e) RPC 1.15(e), which provides, in pertinent part, that as 

lawyer shall promptly deliver to the 6[ent or third person any 

property, including but not '[ignited to Rule 1.15Funds, that 

the orient or third person is entitled to receive"; 
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f) FOP 1.16(d), which provides, in pertinent park, that "[u]pon 

termination of representation, a lawyer shall take steps to 

the extent reasonably practicable to ,protect a client's 

interests, such as— surrendering papers and property to 

which the client is entitled and refunding any advance 

payment of fee or expense that has not been earned or 

incurred"; 

(9) RPC . (a)(1), which provides that `(a] lawyer shall not 

knowingly ma ke a false statement of raterial fact or law to 

a. tribunal or fail to correct a. false statement of material fact 

or law previously made to the tribunal by the lawyer"; 

(h) RPC 4A (a), which provides that 0 [i]n the course of 

representing a client a lawyer shall not knowingly make a 

false staternent of rnaterial fact or law to a third person"; 

(i) RPC . 1(a). which provides, in pertinent part, that as 

lawyer... in connection with a disciplinary rnatter0 shall not 

knowingly make a false statement of material fact'°, 

j) RPC . 11(b), which provides, in pertinent park, that "a 

lawyer— in connection with a disciplinary matteril shall 
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not— knowingly fail to respond to a lawful demand for 

information from an admissions or disciplinary authority"', 

(k) I PD .4(b), which provides that "[i]t 'is professional 

misconduct for a lawyer to commit a criminal act that 

reflects adversely an the lawyer's honesty, trustworthiness 

or fitness as a lawyer in other respects"; 

(I) RPD 8.4(c), which provides that "(i]t is professional 

misconduct for a lawyer to engag-e in conduct involving 

dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation", 

(m) RPC 8.4(d), which provides that "[i]t is professional 

misconduct: for a lawyer to engage in conduct that is 

prejudicial to the administration of justice; 

(n) Pa.R. D. E. 203(b)(3), which provides #hat "[w]illful violation of 

any other .proVision of the Enforcement Rules" is a ground 

for discipline, 

(o) Pa.I .D_E-. 03(b)(4), which provides that "[f]ailure by a 

respondent-attorney without good cause to comply with any 

order under the Enforcement Rules of the Supreme Court, 

the Board, a hearing committee or special master" is a 

ground for discipline; 
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(p) Pa.l .D.E. 2 °17(a), which, provides, in pertinent park, that "[a] 

formerly admitted attorney shall promptly notify, or cause to 

be promptly notified, all clients being represented in pending 

matters, other than litigation or administrative proceedings, 

of'the disbarment, suspens%on, .administrative suspension or 

transfer to inactive status and the consequent inability of the 

formerly admitted attorney to act as an attorney after the 

effective. date of the disbarment, suspension, administrative 

suspension or transfer to inactive status and shall advise. 

said clients to seek legal advice elsewhere", 

(q) Pa. .ID.E. 17(b), which ,provides, in pertinent part, that "[a) 

formerly admitted attorney shall promptly notify, or cause to 

be promptly notified, all clients who are involved in pending 

litigation or adm1nistrative proceedings, and the attorney or 

attorneys for each adverse party in such matter or 

proceeding, of the disbarment, suspension, administrative 

suspension or transfer to inactive status and consequent 

inability of the formerly admitted attorney to act as an 

attorney after the effective plate of the disbarment, 

suspension, administrative suspension or transfer to 
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inactive status. The notice to ,be given to the client shall 

advise the prompt substitution of another attorney or 

attomeys in place of the formerly ,admitted attorney. In the 

event the client does ,not obtain substitute counsel before 

the effective date of the disbarment, suspension, 

administrative suspension or transfer to inactive status., it 

shall be the responsibility of the formerly admitted attorney 

to move in the court or agency, in which the proceeding is 

pending for leave to withdraw,. The notice to be given to the 

attorney or attorneys for an adverse party shall state the 

puce of residence of the client of the formerly admitted 

attorney 

(r) Pa,RAE 217(c)(3), which provides that "(a] formerly 

admitted) attorney shah promptly notify, or cause to be 

promptly notified, of the disbarment, suspension, 

administrative suspension or transfer to inactive status any 

other tribunal, court, agency or jurisdiction urti which the 

attorneys is admitted to practice't 

Pa.R.D.E. 217(d)(3)(i), which provides, in pertinent part, that 

"Jiln cases of._Jemporary suspension under Enforcement 

(s) 
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Rule 08(f) ... a formerly admitted attorney shall also 

promptly resign all appointments as personal 

representative,executor, administrator, guardian, 

conservator, receiver, trustee, agent under a power of 

attorney, or other fiduciary position"; and 

(t) Pa-R.D.E. 17(e)(1), which provides,, in pertinent part, that 

"lwlithin ten days after the effective date of the disbarment, 

suspension, administrative suspension} or transfer to 

inactive status order, the formerly admitted attorney stall file 

with the Board a verified statement and serge a copy on 

Disciplinary Counsel. In the verified statement, the formerly 

admitted attorney shall:_.. ( i) aver that the provisions of the 

order and these ales have been fully complied with;...(vi) in 

cases of ... temporary suspension under Enforcement Rule 

0 (0._,aver that he or she has complied with the 

requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) ofthis Rule, 

and aver that he or she has attached proof of compliance, 

including resignation notices,, evidence of the closing of 

accounts, copies of cancelled checks and other instruments 

demonstrating the proper distribution of client and fiduciary 
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funds, and requests to cancel advertisements and 

telecommunication listings." 

WHEREFORF, Petitioner prays that your Honorable Board 

appoint, pursuant to Rule 205, Pa.R.D.F., a Hearing Committee to hear 

testimony and receive evidence in support of the foregoing charges and upon 

completion of said hearing to make such findings of fact, conclusions of law, 

and recommendations for disciplinary anti n as it may deem appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

OFFIGEOF DISCIPLINARY CIPLINA COUNSEL 

THOMAS J, FARRELL 
Chief Disciplinary Counsel 

BYE 
Daniel S. White 
Attorney Registration No. 322574 
Disciplinary Counsel 
Frick Building, Suite 1300 
437 Grant Street 
Pittsburgh, Eli 15219 
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VERIFICATION 

The statements contained in the foregoing Petition for Discipline are 

true and correct to the best of my knowledge or information and belief and are. 

made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. . . §4904; relating to Unsworn 

falsification to authorities. 

9/14/22 
Gate Daniel S. White 

Disciplinary Counsel 
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